

Mitel MiVoice Business Integration Guide

Encore Workforce Optimization Solution Version 9.1 or later

August 28, 2024



For Dealer and Customer Use

DVSAnalytics Phone: (480) 538-2020 Email: info@DVSAnalytics.com Web: www.DVSAnalytics.com

PROPRIETARY NOTICE

This document is prepared for DVSAnalytics dealer and customer use only. Information contained herein is proprietary and confidential, and may not be disclosed, distributed, or reproduced without the express written permission of DVSAnalytics. 2024 DVSAnalytics All rights reserved.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Introduction	3
Supported Data Capture	
Supported Recording Features	
Software and Hardware Requirements	5
Overview	6
Station-side RTP Packet Capture	6
Station-side TDM	6
Subscription-based SRC Audio Stream	7
Trunk-side TDM	
Trunk-side SIP Packet Capture	9
Configure Mitel System	10
Step 1: Configure the MCD/MiVoice Business Software	
For MCD v4.x to v6.x only	
For all Mitel systems	
Step 2: Grant a Certificate on the MBG/SRC Server	
Call Handling Scenarios	13
External Inbound Call	
External Inbound Call with Supervised Transfer	
External Inbound Call to ACD	
External Outbound Call	
Internal Call	
External Inbound Call with Blind or Unannounced Transfer	
Consultation Call	
Conference Call	15
Appendix A: Glossary	16

Introduction

The Encore system integrates with the Mitel MiVoice Business platform. This integration allows the Encore system to successfully perform the following functions:

- Audio Collection Capture the audio that needs to be recorded.
- Recording Control Receive the necessary events that signal when the Encore must start and stop recording.
- Data Capture Receive data associated with the call.

The Encore system can record calls on the Mitel MiVoice Business platform without using MiTAI but the recording controls and data capture are limited; configuration for this integration is not covered in this document.

Supported Data Capture

The following is a list of supported data elements that can be collected with each recording. Not every element is applicable for each call. For example, if the call being recorded is an internal call, the Trunk ID field is blank. For a description of each data element, refer to "Appendix A: Glossary" on page 16.

- ACD Name
- ACD Number
- Agent ID
- ANI
- Call Direction
- Call ID

- Call Type
- Consultation Call
- DNIS
- Extension
- Hold Duration
- Hunt Group

- Other Party Name
- Other Party Number
- Recorded Party Name
- Recorded Party Number
- Trunk ID

Supported Recording Features

The following matrix should be used to determine which audio collection is best for your business needs. If you find that more than one collection method will work for you, talk to your Encore representative about which method is more cost-effective. For a description of each feature, refer to "Appendix A: Glossary" on page 16. Note: Where supported, G.711 Wav recording is the default recording format.

	AUDIO COLLECTION METHOD				
RECORDING FEATURE	STATION- SIDE TDM	TRUNK- SIDE TDM	STATION-SIDE RTP PACKET CAPTURE (PASSIVE INTERFACE)	SUBSCRIPTION-BASED SRC AUDIO STREAM ¹	TRUNK-SIDE SIP PACKET CAPTURE
Max. Recording Ports per Server ²	192	288	400	400	288
Record External Calls	YES	YES	YES	YES	YES
Record Internal Calls	YES		YES	YES	
Record Encrypted Calls		YES		YES	YES ³
Related Call Lookup	YES	YES	YES	YES	
Pause/Resume on Hold	YES	YES	YES	YES	
Beep Tones				YES	
Hot Desk		YES		YES	YES
Key System/MultiCall Groups	YES	YES	YES	YES	YES
G.711 Wav Recording	NO ⁵	NO ⁵	Stereo ⁴	Stereo ^{4,6}	NO ⁵

1. For SRC, only phones registered in the SRC are recorded. This method requires licenses to be purchased from Mitel.

2. Small Business Servers are limited to 72 ports.

3. If the encryption occurs at the station, Encore can record the encrypted calls. If the encryption occurs at the trunk Encore cannot record encrypted calls.

4. G.711 Wav Recording in stereo stores recorded audio at 16000 bytes/sec.

5. Vox mono audio storage only. Encore stores recorded audio using ADPCM 4000 bytes/sec.

6. Requires Encore's Stream Service – Mitel to be installed.

Software and Hardware Requirements

SYSTEM	SOFTWARE REQUIREMENTS
Mitel system	 All audio collection methods Mitel MiVoice Business v7.0 or later No special requirements Mitel Communications Director (MCD) v4.x to v6.x A MiTAI/TAPI Computer Integration license Subscription-based SRC Audio Stream Mitel Secure Recording Connector (SRC) v1.0.27 or later This includes Mitel Border Gateways that integrate the SRC service Mitel Standard Linux v7.0 or later 1 SRC tap license is required for every phone that needs to be simultaneously recorded. For instance, if a customer has 20 phones that need to be recorded but they are split into two shifts so that 10 phones are used during the day and 10 phones are used during the evening, the maximum simultaneous recordings would be 10, resulting in the need for 10 SRC tap licenses. If recording WebRTC softphones, MBG 11.5 SP1 or higher
Encore system	No specific requirements

SYSTEM	HARDWARE REQUIREMENTS
Mitel system	 Station-side TDM Must allow Encore to tap at the punch down block Trunk-side TDM Must allow Encore to tap at the trunk Station-side RTP Packet Capture Span port on network to route all RTP traffic for recorded stations to Encore server DHCP IP address reservation or static IP assignment for each station to be recorded Subscription-based SRC Audio Stream A separate SRC/MBG server Trunk-side SIP Packet Capture Span port on network to route all SIP and RTP traffic to Encore server Session Border Controller
Encore system	 Station-side TDM AudioCodes NGX PCIe card Trunk-side TDM AudioCodes DP PCIe card

Overview

This section provides an overview of each audio collection method. For simplicity's sake, the diagrams only display a single Encore server but there can be multiple Encore servers depending on the number of stations to be recorded.

Station-side RTP Packet Capture

The Station-side RTP Packet Capture method uses a span port to collect the RTP audio packets directly from the network segment that includes the VoIP traffic. Based on events received from MiTAI, the Encore server collects the RTP packets for a specific IP or MAC address and converts the RTP data to an audio recording file. Encore collects data associated with the call from the MiTAI messages.



Station-side TDM

The Station-side TDM method uses a passive tap on the phones connected to the Mitel 3300 ICP to collect audio. These may be analog or digital phone sets. This passive tap is connected to the recording boards in the Encore server. Based on events received from the recording boards or from events received from MiTAI, the Encore server collects the audio on the recording boards and associates data with the call from the MiTAI messages.



Subscription-based SRC Audio Stream

The Subscription-based SRC Audio Stream method uses the RTP packets sent from the Mitel MBG/SRC via the network to record audio. The start/stop events and call data are sent by MiTAI to the Encore system. Encore sends tap requests to the MBG/SRC server and begins recording the audio from the SRC stream.



NOTE

If, under very rare circumstances, the Mitel MBG/SRC server is rebooted while calls are connected, the Encore server continues to display these calls as recording until:

- 1. The timeout has expired, or
- 2. The first call made after the MBG/SRC reboot, on the extension in question, has terminated.

In scenario #2, the audio of the next call from this extension, that immediately follows the MBG/SRC reboot, is appended to the original call that was in progress at the time of the MBG/SRC reboot. Therefore, the reviewer would hear a portion of the original call, immediately followed by the first call made after the MBG/SRC reboot for the extension in question. Any call data for the appended call is lost.

Trunk-side TDM

The Trunk-side TDM method uses a passive tap on the telephony trunks that connect the Mitel 3300 ICP PBX to the PSTN. The trunks can be T1, E1, or Analog. This passive tap is connected to the recording boards in the Encore server. The audio is collected via the passive tap. Based on events received from the recording boards or from events received from MiTAI, call recordings can be started or stopped, and the data associated with the call record.



Trunk-side SIP Packet Capture

The SIP Trunk recording method uses a span port but employs the SIP Trunk Audio Server to collect the SIP packets and the RTP packets from the trunk. Based on the SIP trunk events, the recorder starts and ends recordings for SIP trunk calls. If the call terminates to a monitored device, Encore collects data associated with the call from the MiTAI messages; otherwise Encore only collects call data present in the SIP message.



NOTE

When recording SIP trunks, DVSAnalytics prefers that all SIP trunk traffic goes through a Session Border Controller (SBC), such as a Cisco CUBE, Ingate SIParator, etc. The SBC's LAN-side port must terminate to a network switch that can provide a SPAN/mirror port to the Encore server.

If an SBC cannot be provided, then the SIP trunk provider must be able to guarantee that a single IP Address will be used for all SIP and RTP media packets for both inbound and outbound calls. The LAN-side port of the device used for SIP trunk traffic must terminate to a network switch that can provide a SPAN/mirror port to the Encore server.

Configure Mitel System

The steps to configure the Mitel system are included in this section. The screenshots of the MCD/MiVoice Business platform are from MCD v4.1 SP1 and MiVoice Business 8.0 and the screenshot from Mitel SRC is from version 2.2.14.0. These screenshots may differ from the version installed on your system. It is assumed that you have a working knowledge of the Mitel systems, and only need specific configuration assistance.

Step 1 is performed for all audio collection methods. Step 2 is only performed if using the Subscriptionbased SRC Audio Stream method.

Step 1: Configure the MCD/MiVoice Business Software

For MCD v4.x to v6.x only

Expand Licenses from the menu on the left and then select License and Option Selection.

Scroll to the **Mitai/Tapi Computer Integration** option and set it to **Yes**. This option may only be available if you have purchased a MiTAI license from Mitel. Then click **Save**.

Labsou	License and DN to search g	S	now form on N	ot Accessible	× 00 N
in of carefull	Contraction (Contraction)				
Elicenses	Change	Print	Import_	Export	Data Refresh
License and Option Selection System Capacity	License and Option Selection				
Dimension Selection	Online Licensing with the Application	Management Cent	er		
- CARTWAR Consignation					
Network Elements	Application Record ID	25059233			
Admin Groups 🞺	Purchased Options				
Fax Service Profiles 🛷	Users				
Network Zone Tonology	IP User Licenses	32			
Bandwidth Management 🛷	External Hot Desk User Licenses	0			
System Properties	ACD Active Agent Licenses	2			
System Settings	HTML Apps Infrastructure	0			
Date and Time 🧬	Analog Lipp Licenses	0			
Controller Registry 🥔	Analog Line Licenses	0			
System Ports	Voicemail				
Application Logical Ports	Mailbox Licenses	No			
System Feature Settings	Advanced Voice Mail	Yes			
System Administration	Voice Mail Hospitality/PMS	No			
Hardware	The state of the s				
Hardware Modules	I runking/Networking				
Hardware Compute Cards	Digital Link Licenses	1			
 Modulas 	FAX Over IP (T.38) Licenses	0			
Controller Module Conferration	SIP Trunk Licenses	2			
Controller Module Conlegeration	XNET Networking	Yes			
Analog Services Onlis	IP Networking	Yes			
 Framers 	Others				
Resilient T1/E1 Framers	Toppating	Voc			
Quad BHI Framers	MLPP	No			
Unit Configuration	Remote Management	Yes			
P Trunks	Hardware Identifier	0000002BE0D1			
Users and Devices	Password				
Voice Mail	C . C . C . C . C				
Call Routing	Configuration Options				
Music On Hold	Country	North America			
Finernency Services Mananement	Networking Option	Yes			
Property Management	Mitai/Tapi Computer Integration	Yes			
Maintenance and Diagnostics	Extended Agent Skill Group	No			
	Maximum Elements per Cluster	30			
	Maximum Configurable IP	700			
	Users and Devices	No			
	Extended Hunt Group	140			

For all Mitel systems

Next, it is important to set a few parameters for the class of service assigned to each phone that needs to be recorded. In the MiVoice Business software, expand **System Properties** and then expand **System Feature Settings**. Select **Class of Service Options**.

			where the state of	1 (?
a window now change	c to cnow the cia	$cc \cap t c \cap v \cap c \cap n$	מעמת המתר המער האמר	naan contiguirag
	3 I.U. 3HIUVV HHE LIA	33 01 351 9105 1101		DEEH CONTRACTED.

🕅 Mitel 🕴 MiVoice	Business	Node Virt3300' Alarm Status: Clear 2017.Jan.06 18:20:37	□ ? ① ₽	
Virt3300	Class of Service Options on Virt3300	DN to search V Show form (on Not Accessible 🔹 💿 🕇	
	Change Copy	Print Import	Export Data Refresh	
Licenses	Page 1 of 11	Go to Va	lue Go	
LAN/WAN Configuration				
Voice Network	Class of Service Options		100	
System Properties	Class Of Service Number	Comment	î	
System Settings	1			
System Feature Settings	2			
System Options	3			
Shared System Options 🥔	4			
Class of Service Options 🖑	5			
SIP Device Capabilities 🥔	6			
Class of Restriction Groups 🧬	7			
System Access Points 🖨	8			
Feature Access Codes 🦨	9			
Independent Account Codes 🧬	Court Alexand			
Default Account Codes 🧬	General Advanced		No. A	
System Account Codes 🧬	Return Disconnect ione when Far End Party Clears		NO	
System Speed Calls 🍻	HCI			
Tenants	HCI/CTI/TAPI Call Control Allowed		Yes	
SMDR Options 📣	HCI/CTI/TAPI Monitor Allowed		Yes	
Traffic Report Options 🧬	Hot Desk			
Inward Dialing Modification 🎺	Green BLF Lamp for Logged in Hotdesk User		No	
Outward Dialing Modification	Hot Desk External User - Allow Mid-Call Features		Yes	
System IP Ports 🧩	Hot Desk External User - Answer Confirmation		Yes	
Location Based Numbers 🎺	Hot Desk External User - Dial Tone on Call Complete		Yes	
System Administration	Hot Desk External User - Permanent Login		No	
Trunke	Hot Desk External User - Remote MWI Enable Feature Access Code			
Lisers and Devices	Hot Desk External User - Remote MWI Disable Feature Access Code			
Integrated Directory Services	Hot Desk Login Accept		Yes	
Voice Mail	Hot Desk Remote Logout Enabled		No	
Call Routing	nut besk reminue Luguut Endueu			
Music On Hold	miscenarious Destrictions Facility		Max	
<	Backiignung - Ehabled		Yes	

Click the class of service number that is assigned to phones that must be recorded and verify the following two parameters are set as show below:

- HCI/CTI/TAPI Call Control Allowed parameter set to Yes
- HCI/CTI/TAPI Monitor Allowed parameter set to Yes

If the parameters need to be changed, click **Change** at the top of the window, make the appropriate changes, then click **Save** to save the changes. Verify these parameters are set correctly for every class of service that is assigned to a phone that must be recorded.

Step 2: Grant a Certificate on the MBG/SRC Server

Only complete this step if using Mitel MBG/SRC to obtain audio. When the Encore server connects to the MBG/SRC server for the first time, it enrolls with the MBG/SRC server to establish a trust relationship by issuing a certificate request. The system administrator responsible for the MBG/SRC server must approve the enrollment by granting a certificate via the **Certificate Management** window in the **Server Manager** on the MBG/SRC server.

ServiceLink Blades	Manage Certificates					
Status						
DNS services	✓ Operation status report					
Collaboration		CSR ID C6459760-4D81-11DB-9512-	F269672DFBBC was successfully approved.			
Users		Loss to consiste toos store receiption and accession) approved				
Groups	In this panel, you can manage all Certificate Signing Requests (CSRs) in the queue of this server, and any signed certificates issued by this server's Certificate Authority (CA).					
IP Telephony		any signed contracts associated and set of an and the set of an and the set of the set o				
IP phone support	appro	To approve or reject a request, click on the Request ID, and use the resulting page. Before you approve a CSP, you should establish the individual's identity by some means (by a phonecall at the				
Televorker Solution	very l	east), or you will defeat the purpose of t	his exercise.			
Administration	The fo	llowing are the details of your Certificat	e Authority's signing certificate.			
Backup or restore View log files		Issuer Issuer: C=CA, ST=ON, O=Mitel Networks, OU=VoIP, CN=Mitel 6000 CA/emailAddress=security@Mitel.com				
Event viewer		Subject: CM	=ServiceLink Account ID:			
System information		Subject 87780999/e	mailAddress= <u>admin@smetuq6.smetuq6</u> , O=XYZ			
System monitoring		Corporation				
Reboot or shutdown		Not before Apr 7 20:45:24 2006 GMT				
Consulta		Not after Apr 4 20:45	:24 2016 GMT			
Security	(U) AU	od CSDs				
Legal actuality	queu					
Dort forwarding	Certif	icate ID	Subject			
Contribute Magazeret	080E0C60-481C-11DB-9512-F269672DFBBC		CN=a1:21:00:00:34:57			
Description and the second sec	ED3748B8-4814-11DB-9512-F269672DFBBC		CN=41:22:00:00:14:46			
Proxy seconds	78.902	CEC 4528 1108 0512 52606720500C	CN=11:22:33:44:33:67			
Configuration	60582	1D8-2E08-11D8-8701-D918E6384463	CN=a1:21:00:00:19:12			
Clustering	DB95	9D4-36D9-11DB-8701-D918F6384463	CN=a1:21:00:00:76:68			
Date and time	E9800	18C-1C25-11DB-8701-D91BF6384463	CN=a1:21:00:00:19:75			
Hostnames and addresses	Annro	wed Certificates				
Domains	Cantil	icata ID	Eukinst			
SNMP	Lerti	1646 ID	Subject CN==1:21:00:00:77:26			
Traffic shaping	546162	002-DB1E-11D4-8701-D918E6384463	CN=a1:21:00:00:19:46			
Review configuration	10934	DE0-4822-11DB-9512-F269672DEBBC	CN=a1:21:00:00:75:85			
	95898	0E2-D93B-11DA-8701-D91BE6384463	CN=a1:21:00:00:67:82			
Miscellaneous	85751	0F2-DF69-11DA-8701-D91BF6384463	CN=a1:21:00:00:61:64			
Support and licensing	ASE6E	340-DB10-11DA-8701-D91BF6384463	CN=a1:21:00:00:17:1a			
	3EF1F	9BA-1835-11DB-8701-D91BF6384463	CN=a1:21:00:00:48:99			
	199F3	4AE-E5D9-11DA-8701-D91BF6384463	CN=a1:21:00:00:19:13			

Call Handling Scenarios

This section explains how different calls are displayed in Encore. The samples in this section are from a station-side recording system and it is assumed that all stations involved in the calls are configured to be recorded.

Certain situations affect how recordings are created and how they can be located using the Related Call Lookup feature:

- **Hold** When a call is put on hold, the recording is suspended. When the call is retrieved, the audio is appended to the recording to create one audio recording.
- **Consultation Call** If an agent is on a call and then places a consultation call, the first call is put on hold and the recording is suspended. Assuming the called party is also using a recorded phone, the consultation call is recorded as two separate recordings one for each extension. When the agent hangs up the consultation call and retrieves the caller, the two recordings end and the first recording resumes; the second portion of the recording is appended to the first portion. All three recordings have different Segment IDs (SID) and share the same Related ID (RID).
- Blind Transfer When a call is blind transferred (also called an unannounced transfer), the first recording ends after the agent presses the transfer button and hangs up the handset. The second recording begins when the second agent answers the transferred call. The second recording ends when the second agent hangs up the call. Separate SIDs are associated with each recording and they usually share the same RID. If the call is transferred to an ACD queue or Hunt Group, it may not be possible to show the relationship between the recordings and the same RID may not be associated with both recordings.
- **Conference Call** When an agent decides to bring a third party into a current call, the agent usually puts the caller on hold to first consult with the third party. The first recording of the agent and the outside caller suspends during the consultation call. Assuming the third party is using a recorded phone, the consultation call creates two recordings one for the agent and another for the third party. After the consultation call ends, the first recording resumes when the agent retrieves the caller and it ends when the agent hangs up. The recording of the third party continues until the third party hangs up.
- Internal Call If both extensions are monitored by Encore, two recordings are created one for each extension. The party who initiates the call is treated as the agent for data collection purposes.

External Inbound Call

Recordings: 1 | SID: 1 | RID: 1

Extension 5002 receives an external inbound call with SID A and hangs up when the call is complete. This call creates one recording and one RID even though no other calls are associated with it.

External Inbound Call with Supervised Transfer

Recordings: 3 | SID: 3 | RID: 1

- 1. Extension 5002 receives an external inbound call. Recording 1 begins with SID 1.
- 2. The agent presses the transfer button which puts the caller on hold and suspends Recording 1. The agent then makes a consultation call to extension 5025. Recording 2 for extension 5002 begins with SID 2 and Recording 3 begins for extension 5025 with SID 3. When extension 5002 hangs up, Recordings 1 and 2 end.
- 3. Now the caller is transferred to the agent at extension 5025. Recording 3 continues.
- 4. When the agent at extension 5025 hangs up, Recording 3 ends.

The same RID is associated with all recordings to show they are related.

External Inbound Call to ACD

Recordings: 1 | SID: 1 | RID: 1

ACD Path 5300 contains ACD Skill Group 5200. Agent with login ID 5101 is logged into ACD Skill Group 5200 at extension 5006 and is available to take ACD calls.

An external call is routed to ACD Path 5300 and answered by the agent at extension 5006. A recording with SID 1 begins and, when the call ends, the recording stops. The ACD Number, ACD Name, Hunt Group, and Agent Login ID are associated with the recording.

External Outbound Call

Recordings: 1 | SID: 1 | RID: 1

Extension 5002 makes an external outbound call with SID 1 and hangs up when the call is complete. This call creates one recording and one RID even though no other calls are associated with it. The Call Direction for the recording shows as Outgoing. The dialed number (with the dialed prefix) is stored in the ANI and Other Party Number fields.

Internal Call

Recordings: 2 | SID: 2 | RID: 1

Extension 5002 makes an internal call to extension 5009 (both extensions are monitored by Encore). A recording is created for each monitored extension and each recording is assigned a different SID. Both recordings are assigned the same RID to show they are related to each other.

External Inbound Call with Blind or Unannounced Transfer

Recordings: 2 | SID: 2 | RID: 1

- 1. Extension 5002 receives an external inbound call which starts Recording 1 with SID 1.
- 2. The agent transfers the caller to extension 5009 without consulting the agent at extension 5009. Recording 1 ends when 5002 hangs up his phone.
- 3. Recording 2 with SID 2 begins when 5009 answers the call. It ends when the agent hangs up her phone.

The same RID is associated with each recording to show they are related.

Consultation Call

Recordings: 3 | SID: 3 | RID: 1

- 1. Extension 5002 receives an external inbound call which starts Recording 1 with SID 1.
- 2. The agent puts the caller on hold, suspending Recording 1, and makes a consultation call to extension 5025 which starts Recording 2 with SID 2 to record extension 5002. This also starts Recording 3 with SID 3 to record extension 5025 in the consultation call.
- 3. When the agent at 5002 hangs up the consultation call, Recording 2 ends. When the agent at 5025 hangs up, Recording 3 ends.
- 4. The agent at extension 5002 then retrieves the original call and Recording 1 with SID 1 resumes.
- 5. When extension 5002 hangs up with the caller, Recording 1 ends.

The same RID is associated with all recordings to show they are related.

Conference Call

Recordings: 3 | SID: 3 | RID: 1

- 1. Extension 5010 receives an external inbound call which starts Recording 1 with SID 1.
- The agent at extension 5010 puts the caller on hold and makes a consultation call to bring a supervisor at extension 5008 into the call. This suspends Recording 1. Recording 2 with SID 2 begins to record extension 5010 on the consultation call and starts Recording 3 with SID 3 to record the supervisor at extension 5008.
- 3. When the supervisor at extension 5008 joins the call, Recording 2 ends. Recording 1 resumes and appends the audio to the first portion of the recording. Recording 3 continues.
- 4. When the supervisor at extension 5008 hangs up the call, Recording 3 ends.
- 5. When the agent at extension 5010 hangs up the call, Recording 1 ends.

The same RID is associated with all recordings to show they are related.

Appendix A: Glossary

abandoned call

An incoming call which is answered by the ACD but terminated by the caller before it is answered by an agent.

ACD

Automatic Call Distributor. An application that answers calls and directs them to a predetermined queue, or line, of waiting calls. In most cases, the ACD ensures that the first call in is the first call answered. It also determines which agent receives a call based on predetermined criteria such as idle time or availability and generates reports on call volume and distribution.

agent

A person who handles phone calls. Other variations include operator, attendant, representative, customer service representative (CSR), telemarketer, phone sales representative (TSR), and so on.

ANI

Automatic Number Identification. For inbound calls, this is the phone number from which the customer is calling (may not be supported by the trunk). For outbound calls, this is the dialed number.

automated attendant

A voice processing system that answers calls with a recording and then enables callers to press touch-tone buttons to navigate through a menu system to a person, department, or voice mail.

beep tones

This feature is available for the Subscription-based SRC Audio Stream method and plays a beep tone every 15 seconds when a call is recorded. The agent and the customer hear the beep but it is not audible in the recording.

call direction

The direction is either incoming (inbound) or outgoing (outbound).

call ID

A unique identifier used by the database to locate each recording. The call identifier for a recording can be viewed in Encore.

call record

An entry in a database that holds the data associated with a call.

call type

The call type is either internal or external.

consultation call

A call that is made while the customer (original call) is on hold. In the database, the **Consultation Call** field shows **Yes** when the recording is a consultation call.

digital recording

A method of recording that converts analog sound into a series of pulses that are translated into binary code, which is read by computers.

DNIS

Dialed Number Identification Service. For inbound calls, this is the number the customer dialed or the agent's extension number (may not be supported by the trunk).

encrypted calls

Calls that have the audio RTP packets encrypted. This prevents 3rd party applications, such as the Encore system, from using the RTP packets for recording.

extension

The number associated with a person's station. Extension and station are sometimes used interchangeably.

external calls

In these calls, the calling or called parties are outside the PBX.

hold duration

The sum of all hold durations that occurred during the recording. This is not captured for the Trunk-side SIP Packet Capture audio collection method.

Hot Desk

Each Hot Desk user has a user identifier (which is the user's directory number) and a pin number to log into the system. When logging into a phone that is Hot Desk enabled, the user takes complete control of the set (including line keys, soft keys, etc.) The set now has a new prime directory number—the user's directory number. The registration directory number is unavailable as long as the user is logged into the phone. When the user logs out of the phone, the registration directory number (with line keys, soft keys, etc.) is restored, and the user directory number becomes unavailable.

hunt group

If the call is a hunt group call, then the number of the hunt group is stored in this database field. If the call is not in a hunt group, then the field is blank.

inbound

Calls which are received/answered by a recorded party.

internal calls

Calls made between extensions on the same PBX.

key system/multicall groups

Key system groups and multicall groups let multiple phones share the same extension number. Incoming calls ring all the idle stations, and the stations stop ringing when one member answers the call. Only one member of a key system group can use the line at one time; a multicall group allows simultaneous users.

When a member of a key system group answers a call, the line becomes busy (only one member can use the line at one time); however, when a member of a multicall group answers a call, the line becomes idle (all group members can use the line simultaneously).

When a member of a key system group places a call on hold, the call can be retrieved by any member of the group. When a member of a multicall group places a call on hold, the call can be retrieved only by the set that placed the call on hold.

media encrypted calls

Calls that have the audio RTP packets encrypted. This prevents 3rd party applications, such as the Encore system, from using the RTP packets for recording.

multicall groups

See key system/multicall groups.

other party name

Name of the other party on the line with the person being recorded; may be blank if this is an external call.

other party number

Number of the other party on the line with the person being recorded; if external and incoming call, this is an ANI.

outbound

Calls which are initialed/placed by a recorded party.

pause/resume on hold

A method that pauses the recording of audio and screen when a call is placed on hold, and resumes recording when the hold is taken off.

PBX (PABX)

Private (Automated) Branch Exchange. The phone system to which the office phones are connected.

recorded party name

Name of person being recorded.

recorded party number

Number of person being recorded.

recording

The audio recording, screen recording, and database record associated with a single phone call or conversation.

Related ID (RID)

This unique ID is created by CT Gateway and is associated with all related call segments so you can view the customer's entire interaction with the contact center, including the number of people the customer spoke to, how many times the customer was transferred, etc. As an example, if an agent is on a call and then places a consultation call, the first call is put on hold and the recording is suspended. Assuming the called party is also using a recorded phone, the consultation call is recorded as two separate recordings – one for each extension. When the agent hangs up the consultation call and retrieves the caller, the two recordings end and the first recording resumes; the second portion of the recording is appended to the first portion. All three recordings share the same RID.

Segment ID (SID)

This unique ID is generated by CT Gateway and assigned to each recording. For instance, if an agent is on a call and then places a consultation call, the first call is put on hold and the recording is suspended. Assuming the called party is also using a recorded phone, the consultation call is recorded as two separate recordings – one for each extension. When the agent hangs up the consultation call and retrieves the caller, the two recordings end and the first recording resumes; the second portion of the recording is appended to the first portion. All three recordings have different SIDs.

station

A phone connected to the PBX.

TAPI

Telephony Application Programming Interface. A telephony software interface included in Microsoft Windows operating system that supports the incorporation of telephony control by other applications.

TCP/IP

Transmission Control Protocol/Internet Protocol. The Internet Protocol Suite is the set of communications protocol used for the Internet and other similar networks.

trunk

The connection between the phone company and the PBX that carries incoming calls.

trunk ID

The trunk of a call. If the call is an internal call, then this field is blank. Captured for all inbound/outbound calls.

work group name

If the call is a work group call, then the name of the work group is stored in this database field. If the call is not in a work group, then the field is blank.

work group number

If the call is a work group call, then the number of the work group is stored in this database field. If the call is not in a work group, then the field is blank.